HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE

May 16, 2016
2:38 p.m
2:38: 07 PM
CALL TO ORDER
Co-Chair Thonpson called the House Finance Conmittee

nmeeting to order at 2:38 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Co-Chair
Representati ve Steve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative Lynn Gattis

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Joe Mchel, Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson; Chris
Christensen |11, Associate Vice President for State
Rel ations, University of Alaska; Doug Woliver, Deputy
Adm nistrative Director, Alaska Court System M ke Vigue,
Director, Division of Program Devel opnent, Departnent of

Transportation and Public Facilities;
Kito; Representative Louise Stutes.

Representati ve Sam

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Keith Gerken, Director,
Al aska Sout heast .

Facility Services, University of

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



SB 138 BUDGET: CAPI TAL

SB 138 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

Co- Chair Thonpson di scussed the neeting agenda.

#sb138
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 138(FI N)

"An Act making and anmendi ng appropriations, including
capital appropriations, supplenental appropriations,
reappropriations, and other appropriations; nmaking
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

2:38: 46 PM

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for CSSB 138(FIN), Wrk Draft 29-GS2741\F
(Martin, 5/16/16). There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so
or der ed.

JCE M CHEL, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE STEVE THOWPSON, addressed
the commttee substitute (CS). The first change appeared on

page 4, line 26: energency nedical services match for Code
Blue Project. The Senate version of the bill had used
al cohol noney to pay the appropriation. He explained
Governor Bill Walker's original bill had used General Funds

(GF) to pay for the program The CS switched the fund
source back to G-. He el aborated there were several places
al cohol funds had been renoved because the nobney was al nost
conpletely spoken for in the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) operating budget for the com ng
year; the noney would go towards funding for alcoho
treat nent prograns.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that Representative Gara had joined
t he neeting.

M. Mchel addressed the next change on page 5, line 21
related to the Exxon Valdez QI Spill (EVOS) Trustee
Council purchase of conservation easenments at Term nation
Point and Long Island. The funding was a large dollar
val ue, but cane from the EVOS Trust Council (not G- or
ot her).

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson noted that Representative Paul Seaton was
in the audi ence.

M. Mchel turned to page 6, line 16 and addressed the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) Cold dinmate
Housi ng Research Center. He explained the line item had
originally been $1 mllion paid for with AHFC dividends in
the governor's bill. The Senate version had reduced the
amount to $500,000 and the CS restored the funding to the
full $1 mllion in AHFC dividends. He noved to page 7, line
25 related to deferred maintenance, renewal, repair, and
equi pnent. The original request for the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOI) had been $8

mllion, which had been reduced to zero deferred
mai nt enance by the  Senate; the CS increased the
appropriation to $4 nillion. He addressed the next change
on page 7, Iline 27 related to public and comunity

transportation state match. The original appropriation had
been $1 nmillion, which had been reduced to zero by the
Senate. The CS restored the funding to $1 mllion.

2:42: 18 PM

M. Mchel addressed the next change on page 8, line 3
pertaining to a federal aid highway state match of
$41, 867,800. He detailed the Senate had reduced the nunber
to $6 mllion with a series of reappropriations later on in
the legislation. The difference between the CS and the
Senate version was the anount of reappropriations that had
been pulled out of the match funding in the CS. He noted
t he change was present around Section 21. The next change
was on page 18, line 17 for University of Al aska deferred
mai nt enance, renewal, repair, and equipnent, totaling $10
mllion. The anount restored the governor's origihna
request, which had been reduced to zero by the Senate. He
noted that on pages 19 and 22 (Sections 2 and 3) there
would be slight nunmber changes reflecting fund source
changes in Section 1.

M. Mchel turned to page 24, line 10 related to the Al aska
Land Mobile Radio System (ALMR). The CS restored the
original appropriation of $1 mllion, which had been
reduced to zero by the Senate. The CS also included a
reappropriation for ALMR for approximately $1.2 million
(the amount would was not reflected in the bill's total
dol | ar anmpbunt because it was a reappropriation of funds).
Pages 25 and 26 outlined the funding sources that took

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



place in Section 4. He addressed a new appropriation on
page 35, Section 16 pertaining to the Al aska Court System
He explained it had been brought to Co-Chair Thonpson's
attention that the new Alaska Suprene Court justice in
Fai rbanks needed an office. The CS included $300,000 G- for
the renovation at the Rabinowitz Courthouse. Additionally,
the Alaska Court System was given the ability to use
deferred maintenance funds to cover any remaining
renovation cost. Page 36, line 5 included a reappropriation
of an original Denali Conmm ssion appropriation of $3
mllion. The reappropriation |everaged about $7.5 in Trans-
Alaska Pipeline Liability funds for nporing stations
t hroughout Al aska. Section 17, subsections (d) and (e) on
page 36 pertained to the Al aska Travel Industry Association
(ATIA). He explained ATIA collected nonies from nenbers to
pay for a booklet advertising Alaska. The Departnent of
Conmer ce, Community and Economc Devel opnent ( DCCED)
typically handled the project, but it had decided to turn
the responsibility over to the travel industry. The funds
normally collected by DCCED were going to ATIA and a
visitor center staffing position in Tok, Alaska. He noted
the center was the first place visitors comng in from
Canada st opped.

M. Mchel directed attention to page 36, line 31, which
i ncluded | anguage related to the Departnent of Corrections
(DOC) O fender Managenent System and Victim Information
Notification System The item had been included by the
governor and the Senate, but the Senate had changed the
funding source to alcohol funds. The CS restored the
original fund source to GF to allow alcohol funds to be
mai ntained in DHSS [related to treatnent prograns].

2:47: 00 PM

M. Mchel pointed to page 37, Section 21 related to the
Department of Environnental Conservation (DEC) clean water
projects. He detailed DEC issued nultiple clean water
projects annually; once a project was conpleted the
bal ances eventually |apsed. He explained the section
i ncluded nunmerous conpleted clean water projects where
remaining funds were being reappropriated to the next
project on the list (shown in page 40, subsections (b) and
(c)). Only one of the DEC reappropriations had been
removed, which pertained to renoval of WMonlight Springs
transm ssion line upgrades [in None, Alaska]. He expounded
t he f unds had m st akenly been al | ocat ed for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



reappropriation; however, the project was not yet conplete;
therefore, the project had been renoved from the list of
reappropriations. Page 41, l[ine 30 i ncl uded a
reappropriation not to exceed $5.5 mllion. He specified
the noney had already been appropriated to DHSS for design
and planning of the Alaska Center for Treatnment. The words
"and construction” had been added on page 42, line 5.

M. Mchel directed attention to Section 27, subsection (d)
on page 44. The subsection included the reappropriation of
$7,591,275 to DOr for federal aid highway match. He
expl ained the governor's budget had included $50 nillion
for the item He furthered all of the reappropriations
would go to matching funds for DOT to be leveraged 9 to 1.
Page 47, line 3, subsection (e) also included $800,000. The
two reappropriations provided sufficient funds to neet the
$50 mllion federal highway state mtch. Sections 28
t hrough 33 [begi nning on page 47] included nmenber submtted
reappropriations, which concluded the changes in the CS

2:50: 03 PM

Representative WIson asked about the current balance in
the al cohol fund and the appropriations going to DHSS out
of the fund. She wondered why the funds could not be used
for other things. Additionally, she requested specifics on
how the University would spend the $10 nillion. She
recal l ed projects of about $100 mllion had been conducted
several years earlier and she believed the University had
al so provided sonme matching funds. She wondered what the
University currently had in its deferred nmai ntenance fund.

M. Mchel deferred the question to the University.

KEI TH GERKEN, DI RECTOR, FACILITY SERVICES, UN VERSITY OF
ALASKA SOUTHEAST (via teleconference), replied fornmer
Governor Sean Parnell had allocated $100 mllion to
deferred nmintenance for state facilities for five years

The University had received $37.5 nillion, which had been
distributed across the University system The balance of
the remaining funds was currently commtted. [Note: due to
poor audi o some testinony is indecipherable.]

Representative W/Ison asked how nuch University noney had
been put in the projects. She referred to the specific $10
mllion and asked what projects the funds would be used on.
Addi tionally, she wondered how much funding the University

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



would be contributing to the conpletion of the sane
proj ects.

M. GCerken relayed that his counterparts for Anchorage and
Fai rbanks were also online and could speak to particular
projects. He spoke specifically to the University of Al aska
Sout heast (UAS) and relayed there were three projects. The
Uni versity system all ocated the funds based on the relative
size, square footage, and age of facilities; therefore, UAS
would receive the smallest portion of the $10 mllion
increment at about $500,000. He furthered UAS had three
projects including the Robertson Building in Ketchikan, a
dowmntown facility in Juneau, and one on the Juneau canpus.
The University expected the three projects to exceed
$500, 000, but it would pursue the funds in priority order.
[ Note: due to poor audio sonme testinony is indecipherable.]

Representative WIson thanked University President Jim
Johnson. She remarked that the problem may not exist if the
University system was consolidated from three universities
to one. She was trying to determ ne how nuch of the funding
allocated during the former Parnell Admnistration was
remai ning. Additionally, she wondered where the $10 mllion
in the CS would be allocated and whether the University
woul d provide any matchi ng funds.

M. Cerken answered that the University was currently
investing in the projects with its own operating budget
dollars. He believed the University statew de budget staff
could provide information about the previous capita
appropriations, which went to the Board of Regents in each
of their neetings. The funds from the $100 mllion five-
year program were expended or obligated to existing
proj ects.

2:54: 47 PM

Co- Chair Thonmpson asked for wverification Representative
WIlson had a [deferred nmintenance] list sent out by his
of fice.

Representative WIson appreciated the list, but it nerely
contained the deferred mmintenance on all of t he
[University] buildings statew de. She inmagined and hoped
the University had a ranking system Based on the finance
budget subcomm ttee process she believed the University had
funds remaining (not necessarily in Southeast). She wanted

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



to know what projects they were tal king about. She relayed
the budget subcommittee had tasked the University wth
looking at its buildings to determne whether it could
continue operating over 400 buil dings; if not, the
University had been asked to report back in the com ng year
about how it would look different. She wanted to ensure
nore noney was not put into buildings that may no |onger
have the popul ation. She thought the University would have
the information. She remarked that $10 mllion was a
significant sum

CHRI'S CHRI STENSEN 111, ASSOCI ATE VICE PRESIDENT FOR STATE
RELATIONS, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA, conmmunicated that the
University had alnost 40 percent of all of the square

footage owned by the State of Al aska, which included 420
buildings with an average age of 32 years. The University
currently had a $1 billion deferred mai ntenance backl og; it
took approximately $50 mllion per year to keep current
with the backlog and it had received substantially below
that amount from the legislature in recent years as the
state's budget problenms had worsened. The University had
recently bonded for $50 million to go towards deferred
mai nt enance and would be paying the anount off for many
years. He stated that $10 million sounded like a lot of
noney but it was not that nuch when considering the size of
t he backlog and the percentage of buildings the University
operated. One of the problens with that many buil di ngs was
the need to keep funding available for unforeseen
ener genci es.

M. Christensen referred to a letter that he had provided
to Co-Chair Thonpson's office [letter from Janes Johnson
President of the University to Co-Chair Neunman dated My
16, 2016] (copy on file), which described the specific
projects the $10 mllion would cover (barring no
energencies occurred). He noted he had represented the
Al aska Court System for many years and he recalled the roof
of the Dinond Courthouse had failed one day. The roof
project had been on the deferred maintenance list, but it
had failed prior to the work being done; water had danaged
seven stories of the building as a result. He reasoned
things like that happened and it may be necessary to pul
noney away from another project to address the issue. He
stated $10 million was a mninmal anmount considering the
size of the problem but the University was grateful for
what ever the | egislature could provide.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



2:58:24 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson did not want to see the |egislature
m cromanage the University's deferred naintenance on over
400 buildings. He had confidence the University was being
as frugal and responsible as it could be in order to keep
buil dings from deteriorating and costing nore noney in the
future

Representative WIson wanted to see where the noney had
been spent to determ ne whether there were still existing
funds remaining prior to the allocation of the $10 mllion.
She requested a fundi ng sheet.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to the University's $1 billion
deferred mai ntenance backlog. He asked for the total value
of the University buildings. M. Christensen answered that
it was in excess of $2 billion. He would work to follow up
with a precise nunber.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er surmsed the backlog represented
approximately half the value of the buil dings.

M. Christensen answered that the backlog reflected that
the 420 buildings had an average age of 32 years. Half of
the buildings were very old and very few were new. The
conbi nation of old buildings and being unable to keep up on
deferred nmaintenance resulted in significant deferred
mai nt enance representing a significant percentage of the
asset val ue.

2:59:59 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to page 41 of the CS related to
t he changes and reappropriation for the DHSS Al aska Center
for Treatnment. He asked for specifics about the project. He
asked about the original appropriation for the Southcentral
Foundation Residential Psychiatric Treatnment Center. He
wonder ed about the cost when finished and who was operating
the facility.

M. Mchel answered that the original appropriation had
been state matching funds for the Bring the Kids Hone
project. The funds had been reappropriated for planning and
design of Alaska Center for Treatnent in Anchorage
(ditheroe Center). He detailed in collaboration with the
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA) the goal had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



been to start construction on the project to have treatnment
avai l able as soon as possible (utilizing efforts from the
omi bus crinme bill SB 91 and ot her).

Vice-Chair Saddler stated there was a Citheroe Center the
Sal vation Arny operated out of at Point Wronzof, which had
associated facilities. He asked if the Al aska Center for
Treatnment project would entail brand new construction or
t he denol i shing and reconstruction of an existing facility.

M. Mchel answered that the building was very old;
therefore, there would be significant new construction, but
they would try to salvage as nmuch of the existing building
as possi bl e.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for resources to gain additiona
information on the project. M. Mchel replied that he
woul d supply the information.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki asked about Section 35 on page 50
related to legislative reappropriations. He noted that the
| anguage in the previous bill version was slightly
different; the prior version included |anguage about four
specific reappropriations from the Taskforce on Sustainabl e
Educat i on, Legi sl ative Budget and Audit, Legi sl ative
Council, and the operating budget. The current version
included four different dollar anounts. He asked why the
change had been nmade.

M. Mchel answered that the additional reappropriations in
the section were related to the second |egislative special
sessi on.

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to |anguage that the $1.5
mllion appropriated for security surveillance upgrades and
enhancenments for the state capitol building were included.
He asked about the unexpended and unobligated G- bal ance
for the eight itens [Section 35 of the CS contained eight
reappropriations].

3:04: 00 PM

M. Mchel would follow up with an answer. He believed the
Senate version had included a dollar figure. The
cal cul ation woul d mean addi ng t he addi ti ona

reappropriations on top of the balance mnus $1.5
[mI1lion].

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



Representative Kawasaki referred to the prior bill version
[CSSB 138(FIN)], which listed the estimted balance of the
four itens as $5.5175 million. He furthered $1.5 nillion
would be appropriated specifically for the security
systens. He noted the remaining funds would go directly to
Legislative Council. He did not know what the amount would
be - he guessed $4 nmillion or larger. He asked for
verification that the remaining funds would be used at
Legislative Council's discretion as long as it was used for
renovation and repair or technology inprovenents for
| egi sl ative buil dings.

M. Mchel replied that an additional difference from the
Senate version appeared on page 51, line 11: "and other
necessary projects.” The Senate version used the word
"expenses" instead of "projects,” which could be any
variety of things (not specific capital projects). He
expl ai ned the nmoney would go to Legislative Council, which
expended funds fromits appropriations.

Representative Kawasaki asked if the Legislative Counci
could wuse the funds for the Anchorage Legislative
Information Ofice (LIO.

M. Mchel replied in the affirmative. The capital budget
included a $12.5 nillion appropriation for the Anchorage
LI QO The | anguage was not confining and the funds could be
used for other necessary expenses related to |egislative
buil dings and facilities.

Representative Quttenberg pointed to Section 10 on page 33
related to the Kivalina School. The bill specified that the
money woul d satisfy the state's obligation of the consent
decree. He asked if the legislature was the body deciding
that the appropriation satisfied the consent decree. He
wonder ed what authority the | anguage had.

M. Mchel responded that he did not have sufficient |ega
expertise to answer the question. He advised nenbers to
review the pros and cons discussed by the Senate related to
t he | anguage. The | anguage had been inserted by the Senate.

Representative Gut tenberg asked i f t here was a

representative or witten response from the Departnent of
Law (DOL) that could provide further detail.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson replied there was a witten response from
Doug Gardner [Legislative Legal Services director] and he
woul d have information provided.

Representative Gara requested to hear from DOL to ensure
the legislature was neeting its legal obligations related
to the Kivalina School .

Co- Chair Thonpson agreed that he would try.

3:09: 05 PM

Representative Gara requested to ask several questions of
the Al aska Court System

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that DOL had provided responses,
but were not avail able at present.

Representative Gara remarked there had been a $600, 000
increnment to renovate an office in Fairbanks for the new
Al aska Suprenme Court justice. He noted the increnent had
been reduced to $300,000 with the remai nder of costs to be
covered by deferred mai ntenance funds. He knew the incom ng
justice would not want excessive funds spent on her office.
He asked why it would cost $600,000 to accommpdate the new
justice and a couple of staff for one office in a new
bui | di ng.

DOUG WOOLI VER, DEPUTY ADM NI STRATI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COURT
SYSTEM answered that the Rabinowitz Courthouse had a 5th
floor that was largely unfinished. He detailed when the
building had been built in 2001 there had been enough
funding to allow for eventual expansion in the hope that
Justice Jay Rabinowitz would be replaced by another justice
from Fairbanks. In 2008 Justice Dan Wnfree had been
appoi nted [and had noved into the 5th floor]. The $629, 000
had been the cost to build Justice Wnfree's office for
four additional staff and a conference room The 5th fl oor
was still largely unfinished. The court system antici pated
the cost for the work on the new office would be slightly
| ess, but the project had not yet gone out to bid since the
appoi ntnent had been made the previous Thursday. The court
system had done sone prelimnary work on the nunbers, but
he was always surprised by the cost of capital projects

The $300,000 and deferred maintenance funds would enable
the court system to build the office. He added that
hopeful ly the cost woul d be bel ow $629, 000.

House Fi nance Committee 11 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



Representative Gara relayed he had been privileged to work
for former Justice Rabinowitz. He asked for verification
that there was unfinished space on the 5th floor of the
Rabi nowitz Building that it would cost over $300, 000.

M. Woliver answered in the affirmati ve.

Representative Gara observed that the estimte exceeded the
anount needed to purchase a house. M. Woliver answered in
the affirmative and noted commercial space was expensive.
He reiterated the cost had been $629,000 for alnost the
sanme anount of space for Justice Wnfree. He added sone of
the work that had been done when Justice Wnfree noved to
the 5th floor was one-time work (e.g. circulation and
ventilation work). He anticipated the cost would be a bit
| ess [than $629, 000].

Co- Chair Thonpson assuned Davis Bacon wages would be paid
to the contractor because it was a governnent project. M.
Wbol i ver bel i eved so.

Representative Gara renarked on the high cost for an
exi sting space. He asked if the departnment had | ooked at
the nost efficient way to build an office for three or four
peopl e.

Co-Chair Thonpson assunmed the estimated funds i ncluded
bui l ding and equi pping the office with conmputers and ot her
necessary supplies. He asked for wverification it was a
turn-key operation.

M. Woliver answered that the cost included construction,
plunbing and electrical. The walls were currently bare-
st ud.

Representative Gara referred to an ATIA appropriation for
tourism marketing and a staff nmenber. He asked for the page
reference in the bill. M. Mchel directed attention to
page 36, |ine 12.

Representative Gara asked if the position at the Tok office
woul d be a state or ATIA enpl oyee.

M. Mchel answered that it was defined in law that the

state have a tourism marketing position in Tok. The
Legi sl ative Finance Division had comuni cated the position

House Fi nance Committee 12 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



was funded with Designated General Funds (DGF). In the
current CS the noney was collected from ATIA nenbers and
went to funding a position required by state law for a
state enpl oyee, which had been an error. He explained the
error would be corrected in the next CS

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if the office was the first place
commercial trucks were required to stop when entering the
u. S.

M. Mchel answered that the facility in Tok was the first
tourism and marketing office, but it was not a weigh
station.

Co- Chair Thonpson surnised the position did not have a dual
purpose. M. Mchel answered that it was a dual purpose
position, which was shared with DOT in regards to visitor
center responsibilities including |icenses and ot her.

3:16: 51 PM

Representative Pruitt stated that it was a weird quirk in
Al aska statute mandating a visitor center in Tok; there was

no ot her location in Alaska wth the requirenent.
Therefore, the state was required to provide a staff at the
| ocation. He did not recall why the provision was in

statute, but he thought it should be looked at in the
future. He surmsed at sonme point in tine someone from the
district had been in the right circunmstances to secure the
requirenent in statute. He agreed that M. Mchel was
correct. The only way to elimnate the requirenent was to
make a statutory change. He remarked the state required the
position, but it was also requiring the travel industry to
pay for a state enployee, which may not fit within the
travel industry's plan on how it wanted to spend its noney
as the state noved the association away from GF.

Representative Gattis remarked that she hauled equipnent
across the border and she did not have to stop to talk with
tourism staff. She clarified the weigh station was not
affiliated with the tourist staff.

Representative Gara wanted to hear why the position was
needed. He relayed that two or three years back the
| egi sl ature had passed a school funding plan specifying how
much mnoney should have gone towards education funding. He
explained that later on, the |egislature had chosen not to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



appropriate the funds. He stated that everything was
subject to appropriation, even the position in Tok. The
guestion was whether it was a w se use of noney, which he
did not have information on. He underscored it was not
mandatory to fund everything just because it was in a
statute. He added there were sone statutes providing for
t hi ngs he wi shed were funded at present.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if the increnent was G- noney.

M. Mchel answered that it was not G- noney in the current
CS. The funds were received from nenbers of the ATIA (just
like cruise ship head tax) and should be spent on things
aut horized by ATIA As drafted, the current CS used ATIA
funds to pay for the position, which had been a drafting
error on his part.

Representative Gara surmsed if it was one thing if the
noney was provided to the state by ATIA but he was not
aware of ATIA giving the state any noney. He knew ATI A took
advertisenments out in a state travel planner and paid for
those, but it was not noney being given to the state. He
asked travel planner noney was being used for the position.

M. Mchel answered that it was travel planner noney.

Representative Gara noted [ATIA] nenbers received a benefit
for that. He questioned whether it was the best use of
$125,000, but he noved on to a different subject. He
di scussed that over $2 million for his district had been
taken from projects that were not noving forward at the
time. He understood that the state was in a fiscal crisis
and had not tried to claw the noney back. He believed nost
menbers had done the sanme. However, he pointed to page 48
and remarked he had no problem appropriating funds to help
with a senior center or police building, but the bill
included a reappropriation in the Soldotna and Sterling
areas for kitchen upgrades, police roof wor K. He
acknowl edged the itens were needed, but asked if the itens
had been in the governor's original budget.

M. Mchel answered in the negative. The reappropriation
itens had been subnitted by nmenbers of the |egislature.

Representative Gara asked if the sane applied to the Anchor

Point Library on page 48, line 22. M. Mchel answered in
the affirmative, the item was a reappropriation. The

House Fi nance Committee 14 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



original appropriation was Anchor Point Library planning;
the words "and purchase” had been added to the
reappropriation.

Co- Chair Thonpson surm sed the noney was still going to the
same project.

M. Mchel replied in the affirmative. He detailed $15, 000
had been appropriated in 2014 for the Anchor Point Library
and a legislator from the district had requested the
addi tional "and purchase" |anguage.

3:22:49 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson asked for verification that it was a 2014
appropriation. M. Mchel replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara relayed he did not have a problem with
the projects, but he wondered whether the original noney
for the Sterling Senior Center for garage, storage, and
wor kshop work had been reappropriated to kitchen upgrades.

M. Mchel answered in the affirmative. He el aborated that
the original appropriation had been $300, 000. The
reappropriation used the remaining balance of the funds
spent on garage, storage, and workshop to pay for kitchen
upgr ades.

Representative Gara asked for verification that the bil
expanded the use of previously appropriated funds to the
Sterling Senior Center and the Sol dotna police building.

M. Mchel answered that the reappropriation used the sane
pot of noney originally appropriated in 2012 (FY 13); no
additional state funds were being used. The reappropriation
nmerely expanded the scope of the project the original
appropriation had been intended for to kitchen upgrades and
essential roof replacenents.

Representative Gara did not support opening the bill up for
all nmenbers to start getting projects in their districts
He wanted to ensure the process was done in a fair way. He

referred to $2.496 mllion appropriated to Palmer for
wast ewat er t r eat ment pl ant property acqui sition,
engi neering, design, and construction. He asked how it
related to the original appropriation (page 47, line 8

t hrough 13).

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



M. Mchel answered that the original appropriation in 2005
was Pal ner wastewater treatnent plant property acquisition

The funds were still allocated to the wastewater treatmnment
plant. He explained the land had been acquired and the
reappropriation would go to funding engineering, design,
and construction. He furthered that very little had been
used from the original appropriation. He detailed the Gty
of Palmer was going to be sued for sone of its water
di schar ge; t her ef ore, the legislator requesting the
reappropriation had the primary goal of advancing the
project into the construction phase in order to start
filtering water.

Representative Gara noted the initial funds had been to
acquire the property and now the reappropriation of $2.5
mllion would go to costs that every city had. He remarked
that the City of Palner stood out in the CS as a comunity
getting $2.5 mllion to do sonething not included in the
original appropriation. He stated that the increnment al nost
begged for every comunity to ask for simlar treatnent.

3:26: 38 PM

Representative Gattis discussed that her district had over
$4 mllion reappropriated. She had told the mayor of
Wasilla that all of the funds had been swept. She had
prom sed the mayor that if other people were able to use
t he reappropriations she would fight for the $4 mllion for
the Cty of Wasilla. She was now fighting for the funds
because she had promsed that if other districts were able
to get their noney she would fight hard for her district.
She stated the increnments had opened up a big door. She
remar ked that people said "they wouldn't squawk" because
t hey understood the state's fiscal situation, but if other
districts were able to get their nmoney, she would fight for
noney for Wasilla. She concluded that the issue was a huge
concern.

M. Mchel asked if it had been an appropriation from the
| ast year. There had been a variety of projects around of
around $20 million that had been swept into the AHFC incone
fund. He noted the receipts had been saved and if it was
one of the reappropriations it wuld still be sitting
t here.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



Representative Gattis had believed no noney would be
reappropriated towards specific districts.

Representative Kawasaki concurred with the past two

speakers. He stated that the Senate bill version had swept
aside 43 different itens. For exanple, he referred to a $4
mllion appropriation for the Kalifornsky Beach Road in

Kenai in 2006, of which, about $140,000 had not been used.
He noted that for a tineline of that length it seened
reasonabl e that perhaps the funds were just not used. He
noted the CS contained nuch fewer reappropriation itens and
he wondered how t hey had been sel ect ed.

M. Mchel replied that many versions had been discussed in
regards DOT federal highway nmatch noney. The governor's
original appropriation included about $50 nmillion G- to
match 9 to 1 federal dollars for the state's federa
hi ghway match. Over the <course of neeting wth the
different departnents, there had been nultiple projects
originally appropriated to a departnent that were set to
| apse. The idea was if the noney was going to |apse, the
funds could be used to |leverage the 9 to 1 DOT match. He
detailed initially it was merely DOT |apsing funds, |ater
on other projects due to |apse had been brought into the
DOT reappropriation for matching funds by the Senate. He
el aborated there had been many projects that were not set
to lapse. He specified that any project where there was
concern it would end up closing out wth |ess noney than
the original appropriation - the dollar figures in the bill
had been taken from a lapsing grant report (a snapshot
occurring sonetine in January) - and would not be avail abl e
for the federal 9 to 1 matching funds. He explained if
there had been concern the item may have been expended, it
had been renoved from the reappropriation and replaced with
GF. The mmjority of the projects originally included and
replaced were set to lapse into the G- at the end of the
year. The goal in the CS was to ensure the itens were not
in the DOT match. One of the itenms was used for the Denal
Comm ssion reappropriation for nooring stations, but the
majority were no longer included in the DOT reappropriation
and were sitting on the lapsing grant fund list waiting to
| apse into the Gr.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if the current CS capitalized

as nmuch federal noney as possible. Alternatively, he
wondered i f noney had been left on the table.

House Fi nance Committee 17 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



M. Mchel deferred the question to DOT.

3:33: 39 PM

MKE VIGJUE, D RECTOR, DI VISION O PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT,
DEPARTIVENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACI LITIES,
answered the governor's requested budget of $50 million for
mat ch woul d be adequate to fully obligate the 2017 federa
aid apportionnent received by the state from the Federal
H ghway Admi ni stration.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki asked how projects were funded if a
state match was required when grants and federal funds cane
in after the cycle.

M. Vigue replied the departnment received an appropriation
fromthe Federal H ghway Adm nistration at the begi nning of
each year. The depart ment compi | ed t he St at ewi de
Transportation I nprovenent Program (STIP), which included a
program of projects. Any additional funds that canme through
were already incorporated into the STIP. He clarified that
t he Feder al H ghway Adm ni stration really provi ded
authority to spend nore noney, but it did not provide
additional funds. He detailed the departnent received an
appropriation and obligation authority. When the departnent
received a bit of extra noney, which occasionally happened
with "August redistribution®™ that was already built into
t he program

Representati ve Kawasaki asked for verification t he
situation would be the sanme for the Federal Railway
Adm nistration (FRA) that worked on a different cal endar,
or the Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA), or other
agenci es.

M. Vigue responded he was uncertain about FRA because the
department did not typically see FRA nobney. However, FAA
the Federal Transit Adm nistration, and the Federal H ghway
Adm ni stration operated in a simlar manner.

Representative Gara referred to page 48, lines 24 through
29. He noted in the past there had been an appropriation
for the Tall Tree Bridge on the Kenai Peninsula, of which
the CS would reappropriate $45,000 to a project to upgrade
Aspen Avenue in N nilchik. He asked if it was a federal
mat ch project or merely left over noney being put into a
new project paid for by the state.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



M. Mchel answered that it the grant had originally been
appropriated to the Kenai Peninsula Borough and was nore
than |ikely an appropriation requested by a legislator. He
noted it had not been included in the STIP

Co- Chair Thonpson asked for the year of the request. M
M chel replied 2014. He offered to follow wup wth
addi tional information.

Representative Gara replied he did not need to see
additional information. He stated the increnent transferred
remaining funds from one project to a new project. He
stated there were 40 House nenbers and he did not support
including the nenber requested itens. He stressed he was
not grabbing any of the reappropriations for his district.
He would | ove to have noney for a road in his district.

Representative WIson asked whether the |egislature ever
received a list of what the matching funds would be
utilized for. She referred to Chena Hot Spri ngs
roundabouts, which many people had voiced they did not
want. She believed it was al nost inpossible for legislators
to stop the process because the |legislature allocated
mat ching funds and the departnent was able to spend the
noney however it wanted. She wondered how the departnment
received a project the community did not want once it was
on the departnent's |ist.

[ Note: M. Vigue was unable to conplete a response due to a
fire alarm]

3:38:46 PM
AT EASE

3:44: 40 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Thonpson remarked that the commttee would neet
the following day on the bill. The neeting would be at
10: 00 a.m The neeting was recessed to a call of the chair
[ Note: the neeting never reconvened].

#
ADJ QURNVENT

3:45:59 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 3:45 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 05/16/16 2:38 P. M



